
 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI) : LIGHT VEHICLE GS 4x4 700 - 900 KG  

(HARD TOP) 
 
 
1. The Ministry of Defence, Government of India, intends to procure approximate  
1500 Light Vehicle GS 4x4 700 to 900 Kg (Hard Top) for use by the three services.  The 
vehicle will be used in General Service role in hills, high altitude, snow bound areas, plains 
and desert and any other terrain as prevalent in the country.  The vehicle should be based 
on contemporary technology to meet the specific requirement of the services.  
 
2. With the view to identify probable vendors who can undertake the said project, 
OEMs/ Authorised Vendors are requested to forward information on the product which they 
can offer. The parameters/ broad specifications of the item are mentioned in the 
questionnaire attached as per Appendix ‘A’. In addition the vendors are required to furnish 
details as per Appendix ‘B’. 
 
3. This Request for Information (RFI) consists of three parts as indicated below:-  
 

(a) Part I.    The first part of the RFI incorporates operational characteristics 
and features that should be met by the equipment. Few important technical 
parameters of the proposed equipment are also mentioned.  
 
(b) Part II.   The second part of the RFI states the methodology of seeking 
response of vendors. Submission of incomplete response format will render the 
vendor liable for rejection.  
 
(c) Part III.   Guidelines for Framing Criteria for Vendor Selection/Pre-
Qualification in Buy Indian (IDDM), Buy (Indian) and Buy & Make (Indian) Cases. 

 
PART - I   

 
4. Intended Use of Equipment (Operational Requirements).  
 

(a) The vehicle should employ contemporary technology in all its systems to 
deliver best performance and reliability. It should be able to perform optimally in 
desert, cross country, High altitude and snow bound areas not less than 5000 meter 
above Mean Sea Level (MSL). 

 
(b) The overall dimensions and weight of the vehicle should allow it to go across 
a Class 5 bridge and be transportable by broad gauge section of the railway with 
ODC clearance.  
 
(c) The vehicle should be transportable in service aircraft and provided with 
lashing points / hooks on all four sides so that it can be air dropped.   
 
(d) The vehicle should be capable of carrying seven soldiers with their personal 
weapon and equipment including driver.   
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5. Important Technical Parameters. 
 

(a) Contemporary Turbo Engine meeting latest CMVR norms as applicable 
with permissible exemptions at the time of issue of RFP. 

 
(b) The engine design should be modular for ease of replacement. 
 
(c) The transmission system will be Manual/Automatic with selectable 4x4 
drive.  

 
(d) There should be a provision of inter wheel differential lock facility on both 
axles.  

 
(e) The vehicle should have Right hand drive with power steering column. 
 
(f) The cabin & body of the vehicle should allow driver, co-driver and the second 
row with seating for three persons. Two foldable separate seats for two persons at 
the rear facing forward or inwards facilitating entry from the rear door.  
 
(g) There should be five doors ie, two each side and one rear door. 
 

6.  Vendors should confirm that following conditions are acceptable:-  
 

(a) The solicitation of offers will be as per „Single Stage-Two Bid System‟. It 
would imply that a „Request for Proposal‟ would be issued soliciting the technical and 
commercial offers together, but in two separate sealed envelopes. The validity of 
commercial offers would be at least 18 months from the last date of submission of 
offers.  
 
(b) The technical offers would be evaluated by a Technical Evaluation Committee 
(TEC) to check its compliance with RFP.  
 
(c) The equipment of all TEC cleared vendors would be put through a trial 
evaluation in India on a „No Cost No Commitment‟ basis. A staff evaluation would 
be carried out by SHQ to analyse the result of field evaluation and shortlist the 
equipment for introduction into service.  
 
(d) Amongst the vendors cleared by GS evaluation, a Contract Negotiations 
Committee would decide the lowest cost bidder (L1) and conclude the appropriate 
contract.  
 
(e) Vendor would be bound to provide product support for time period specified in 
the RFP, which includes spares and maintenance tools/jigs/fixtures for field and 
component level repairs.  
 
(f) The vendor would be required to accept the general conditions of contract 
given in the Standard Contract Document at Chapter VI of DAP.  
 
(h) Integrity Pact (if applicable).   An integrity pact along with appropriate IPBG 
is a mandatory requirement in the instant case (Refer Annexure I to Appendix M of 
Schedule I).  
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(j) Performance-cum-Warranty Bond.   Performance-cum-Warranty Bond as 
applicable on the date of signing of contract against value of the contract inclusive of 
taxes and duties is required to be submitted.  
 
(k) ToT (if applicable).   GOI is desirous of license production of equipment after 
acquiring ToT in the case.  

PART – II 

 
7. Vendors must fill the form of response as sought vide Appendix „A‟ & „B‟. Apart from 
filling details about company, details about the exact product meeting other generic 
technical specifications should also be carefully filled. Additional literature on the product 
can also be attached with the form.  
 
8. The filled form should be dispatched at the under mentioned addressees: - 

 (a) Directorate General of Supplies and Transport (ST-11) 
  QMG Branch, Room No 323, „A‟ Wing, Sena Bhawan 
  Integrated HQ of MoD (Army) 
  New Delhi-110011 
  Tele Number – 011-23018592 
  eMail ID  dirtpt-ihq@nic.in 
 
 (b) Directorate General of Capability and Development (RFP Cell) 
  General Service Branch  
  Integrated HQ of MoD (Army) 
  New Delhi-110011 
   
 (c) Additional Director General  
  Acquisition Technical (Army) 
  New Delhi-110011 
  Tele Number – 011-23012150 
  eMail ID  tmls-mod@nic.in  
 
9. Last date of acceptance of filled form is Eight Weeks from hosting of RFI on                
ADG PI Website.  The vendors shortlisted for issue of RFP would be intimated. 
 
10. Vendor interaction may be planned if considered necessary.  

 
11. The Government of India invites responses to this request only from Original 
Equipment Manufacturers (OEM)/Authorised Vendors/Government Sponsored Export 
Agencies (applicable in the case of countries where domestic laws do not permit direct 
export by OEMs). The end user of the equipment is the Indian Armed Forces.  
 
12. This information is being issued with no financial commitment and the Ministry of 
Defence reserves the right to change or vary any part thereof at any stage. The 
Government of India also reserves the right to withdraw this RFI, should it be so necessary 
at any stage. The acquisition process would be carried out under the provisions of                 
DAP-2020.  
 
 
  

mailto:dirtpt-ihq@nic.in
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Part-III 
 
 

GUIDELINES FOR FRAMING CRITERIA FOR VENDOR SELECTION/  
PRE-QUALIFICATION IN ‘BUY (INDIAN-IDDM)’ ‘BUY (INDIAN)’ AND  

‘BUY & MAKE (INDIAN)’ CASES 
 
 
13. The guidelines prescribed for short-listing/ pre-qualification of Indian vendors in Buy 
(Indian-IDDM), Buy (Indian) & Buy & Make (Indian) cases are enumerated in the 
succeeding paragraphs.  
 
14. Parameters.  
 

(a) General Parameters.  
 

(i) Applicant Entity should be an Indian Vendor as defined at Paragraph 
20 of Chapter I of DAP 2020.  
 
(ii)  Business dealing with applicant Entity or any of its allied entities should 
not have been suspended or banned, by MoD/ SHQ or any Government 
Department or organization (as defined in Guidelines for Penalties in 
Business Dealings with Entities issued vide Ministry of Defence, D(Vigilance) 
MoD ID No 31013/I/2006-D(Vig) Vol II dated 21 Nov 2016). None of the 
Promoters and Directors of applicant entity should be a wilful defaulter.  
 
(iii) “Entities” will include companies, with whom the Ministry of Defence 
has entered into, or intends to enter into, or could enter into contracts or 
agreements. 
 
(iv) “Applicant entity” may be a company, subsidiary, an associate company 
(as defined in the Companies Act, 2013), a consortium or a Joint Venture 
(JV). 

 
(b) Technical Parameters.  
 

(i) Vendor shall be a manufacturing entity or a system integrator of 
defence equipment and not a trading company, except in cases where the 
OEM participates only through its authorised Vendors.  
 
(ii) Minimum two year experience in broad areas like manufacturing/ 
electronics/ explosives etc. as applicable in the instant procurement case. If 
not, then cumulative experience of at least three years in above areas, 
resulting in gaining of competence for manufacturing the proposed product. 
(In case the SHQ feels that for a particular equipment a lesser experience 
could be accepted, then the same should be got approved by the competent 
authority before including the same in the RFP).  
 
(iii) Where product involves integration, previous experience of not less 
than one year/ one project in integration of systems/ equipment shall be 
required. 
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(c) Financial Parameters.  
 

(i) Average Annual Turnover. Minimum average annual turnover for last 
three financial years, ending 31st March of the previous financial year, should 
not be less than 30% of estimated cost of the Buy (Indian-IDDM) and Buy 
(Indian) project and for Buy & Make (Indian) should not be less than 30% of 
estimated cost of the Make portion. 
 
(ii) Net Worth. Net worth of entities, ending 31st March of the previous 
financial year, should not be less than 5% of the estimated cost of the Buy 
(Indian-IDDM) and Buy (Indian) project and for Buy & Make (Indian) should 
not be less than 5% of estimated cost of the Make portion. For orders above 
₹  5000 crores, the Net Worth of group companies can be considered on 
production of suitable documentary assurance. 
 
(iii) Insolvency. The entity should not be under insolvency resolution as 
per Indian Bankruptcy Code at any stage of procurement process from the 
issuing of RFP to the signing of contract.  
 
(iv) Credit Rating (Desirable Financial Parameter). Long term credit 
rating equivalent to CRISIL rating on Corporate Credit Scale as CCR-BBB or 
better, and SME-04 or better for SMEs issued by credit rating agencies 
recognized by SEBI. Credit rating should be as on 31st March of the previous 
financial year.  
 
(Note 1: All the above Financial Parameters, except Paragraph 2(c)(iii) above 
(Insolvency) will not be applicable for Capital Acquisition cases where 
estimated cost is ₹150 crores and below. However, Net worth of entities 
should not be negative.  
 
Note 2: The turnover and net worth of the vendor shall be rounded off to the 
nearest lower ten/ hundred crores so as to keep the estimated cost of 
procurement confidential).  
 

(d) Other Parameters.  
 

(i) Industrial License (IL). Vendors should be either holding a valid 
defence industrial license or should have applied for the same before 
responding to RFP. In any case the vendor must confirm holding of IL before 
commencement of FET. (Items requiring IL will be as per DIPP Press Note 3 
of 2014 as amended from time to time).  
 
(ii) Registration.  Registered for a minimum of two years (one year for 
SMEs). Minimum number of years not applicable for JVs constituted 
specifically for a project. 
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15. Stipulations for Applying Parameters.  
 

(a) Areas like manufacturing/ electronics/ explosives etc. referred to at Paragraph 
14 (b) (ii) should be defined in each case of procurement.  
 
(b) In case the Applicant Entity is unable to meet the Financial Parameters by 
itself, it may rely on its Holding Company (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 
and amendments thereof) (“Companies Act”) for fulfilment of the Financial 
Parameters, in which case reliance must be placed on the Holding Company 
towards fulfilment of ALL the Financial Parameters.  
 
(c) In case the Applicant Entity is unable to meet one or more of the Technical 
Parameters by itself, it may rely on a Group Company(ies) for fulfilment of the 
Technical Parameters. A Group Company in relation to the Applicant Entity may be:-  
 

(i) A company of which the Applicant Entity it is an Associate Company. 
Such company should have ownership, directly or indirectly, of at least 26% of 
the voting shares of the Applicant Entity.  
 
(ii) A company which is an Associate Company of the Applicant Entity. 
The Applicant Entity should have ownership directly or indirectly, of at least 
26% of the voting shares of such Associate Company.  
 
(iii) A Company with whom the Applicant Entity is commonly owned, 
directly or indirectly, for at least 26% of the voting shares by another 
company. For example: An Applicant Company A is an Associate Company of 
Company B, in which B holds at least 26%. Further, C is also an Associate 
Company of B, in which B holds at least 26%. In this case the Applicant 
Company may use the credentials of C as well.  
 
(iv) The Holding Company and Subsidiary Companies (as defined under 
the Companies Act) of the Applicant Entity.  
 

(d) The Applicant entity may be a single entity or a group of entities (the “Consortium”), 
coming together to implement the project. In such case:- 
 

(i) The credentials of only those members or their related entities may be 
counted, who have at least 26% equity stake in the Consortium. 
 
(ii) Each Consortium should have a designated Lead Member. 
 
(iii) For Technical Parameters, any of the Consortium members or their Group 
Companies may meet the criteria.  
 
(iv) For Financial Parameters; the Turnover and Net Worth of the Consortium 
Member shall be reckoned proportionate to Consortium Member‟s equity stake in the 
Consortium, and each Consortium member should meet the other criteria pertaining 
to Insolvency and Credit Rating. In case the Consortium Member relies on its 
Holding Company for any one of the above-mentioned Financial Parameters, then 
reliance must be placed on the Holding Company for meeting all the financial 
Parameters. 
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(e) Vendors should provide all necessary self-authenticated documentation in support of 
their achievement of criteria. Such documentation should inter-alia include:-  
 

(i) Details of projects/ supply orders successfully executed in the last two years.  
 
(ii) Annual reports for three years of applicant entity, parent and associate 
companies, consortium and JV partners.  
 
(iii) Details of shareholders, promoters, associated, allied and JV companies. 
 
(iv) Details of vigilance action, viz. ongoing investigation and suspension/ 
debarment/ blacklisting actions against the applicant entity or any of its allied entities, 
parent company or consortium and JV partners, if any by any Department/agency of 
Central Government. 
 
(v) A certificate from CA/CS indicating the financial parameters for the last three 
years.  
 
(Note: If a vendor is already a supplier to MoD and/ or has already provided the 
above documents in such cases, it should be necessary for the vendor to resubmit 
only such documentations as is necessary to update the above).  
 

(f) Any vendor furnishing false information will be liable for action as per existing 
guidelines.  
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Appendix ‘A’ 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE : LIGHT VEHICLE GS 4X4 700-900 KG (HARD TOP) 
 
 
Note:  Please provide all relevant details and technical specifications to the extent possible.  
Compliance to relevant Automotive Industry Standards (AIS)/CMVR norms may be 
mentioned quoting the relevant specification/ standard number in your reply.   
 

S/No Specification/Parameter Reply 
 

Operational Parameters 

1. Vehicle Dimensions & Weight.   Specify the following :-  

(a) Length of the Vehicle  

(b) Height of the Vehicle (Unladen)  

(c) Wheel Base   

(d) Ground Clearance (Minimum)  

(e) Gross Vehicle Weight   

(f) Width of the Vehicle  

2. Inside Rear View Mirror (IRVM).  Can anti-glare, Day / Night IRVM be              
provided ? 

 

3. Outside Rear View Mirror (ORVM).   What are the type of Outside Rear View 
Mirrors provided in the vehicle ?  Can the ORVM be electrically operated and 
provided with side indicators ? 

 

4. Lashing Arrangements.   Can hooks be provided on all four sides to facilitate 
lashing during its transportation? 

 

5. Towing Arrangements.    What are the towing arrangements provided in the 
front and rear of the vehicle ? 

 

6. Operating Altitude. Till what altitude (in meters above Mean Sea Level not 
less than 5000M) would the engine be able to perform optimally without any 
modifications? 

 

7. Cold Starting & Operating Altitude.  

(a) The vehicle would operate in extreme cold temperature upto -150C.   
What are the arrangements provided for starting the engine at this temperature 
? 

 

(b) Will the vehicle require a separate HAA (High Altitude Area) Kit if 
employed in extreme cold climatic conditions?  Can it be retro-fitted? 

 

8. Performance Capabilities (in Fully Laden Condition).  

(a) Vehicle Speed.   What would be the maximum vehicle speed with full 
payload on level metalled highway?  

 

(b) Acceleration.   What time would be taken in seconds to attain speed of 
0 to 60 Kmph? 

 

(c) Gradeability at Full load.  What would be the gradeability of the vehicle 
at full payload of 700-900 Kgs?  (Give figures in degrees). 

 

(d) Angle of Approach.  What will the angle of approach (To be more than 
gradeability) of the vehicle? To be mentioned clearly in degree. 

 

(e) Angle of Departure.  What will the angle of departure of the vehicle? To 
be mentioned clearly in degree. 

 

(f) Turning Circle Diameter.  What is the turning circle diameter of the 
vehicle? 

 

(g) Ford-ability.  What is the fording capability of the vehicle without any 
preparation? 

 

(h) Side-Slope Stability.   What is the side-slope stability of the vehicle?  
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S/No Specification/Parameter Reply 
 

(Give figures in degree). 

(j) Payload. Will the vehicle be able to carry a payload of 700-900 Kg in 
hills, high altitude, snow bound areas, plains and desert and any other terrain 
prevalent in the country? Mention exact payload capability of the vehicle in Kg. 

 

(k) Gross Vehicle Weight.  What would be the gross vehicle weight with 
payload of 700-900 Kgs? 

 

(l) What is the KPL achieved by the vehicle under normal and test 
conditions? Can ARAI certificate pertaining to fuel efficiency be produced? 

 

(m) Range of Operation.  

(i)  What is the fuel tank capacity?  

(ii) What is the maximum distance covered (in Kms) by the vehicle on 
full fuel tank? 

 

 (n) Is it capable to operate in rain, fog and snow conditions?  

Technical Parameters 

9. Design & Seating Arrangements  

(a) Doors & Window Panels.   

(i) How many doors will the vehicle have?  

(ii) Can a central locking system be provided?  

(iii) The rear door is of ‘Side Hinge’ or ‘Top Hinge’ type?   

(iv) Can Power Windows be provided?  

(v) Is a ‘Side Step’ and ‘Rear Step’ provided?  

(vi) Field of view of driver and other crew members?  

(b) Driver & Co-driver Seats (First Row).   

(i) Can Bucket type moulded seats with integrated headrest be 
provided?  

 

(ii) Can seats for Driver & Co-driver be provided with reclining 
function with provision for horizontal adjustment?  

 

(iii) Do the seating arrangements confirm to any IS norms ?  

(iv) What is the type of seat belts provided for safety of Driver & Co-
driver?  Can three-point seat belts with pre-tensioners be provided?   

 

(c) Middle Row Seating. Please illustrate the following :-    

(i) Can the seat be provided with integrated head rest and arm rests?  

(ii) Can the back be folded to make a flat space available?  

(iii) Can a split seat be provided?  

(iv) Can a cup holder be provided in the central arm rest?  

(v) What is the type of seat belts provided for safety of passengers?  
Can three-point seat belts with pre-tensioners be provided? 

 

(vi) Can it accommodate 3 persons?  

(d) Rear Seating.  

(i) Explain the seating arrangements for two persons in the rear body 
with Hard Top. Can foldable seats be provided?   

 

(ii) What is the type of seat belts provided for safety of passengers?  
Can three-point seat belts with pre-tensioners be provided?  

 

10 Engine  

(a) What is the type of engine provided?  

(b) What is the Power to Weight ratio of the vehicle (in KW) ?  

(c) What is the average life of vehicle including engine in years and KM?  

(d) What is be the maximum Torque achieved by the vehicle?  

(e) What are the Emission Norms (BS Norms) presently being complied?  
Can BS-III norms be complied with, if required? 
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S/No Specification/Parameter Reply 
 

(f) What is the type of fuel used? What BS norms does the fuel have to 
comply with? Does the fuel used require any specific additive at extreme cold 
temperature upto -150C? 

 

11. Starting System. What is the type of starting system provided in the vehicle?  

12. Cooling System.    

(a) What is the type of cooling system provided?  

(b) What is the Ideal & Maximum cooling temperature?  

(c) What is the operating temperature range?  

13. Power Train (Transmission System).    

(a) What type of transmission system will the vehicle have? Give the number 
of gears provided.   

 

(b) Is a differential lock available on both axles?   

(c) Does the vehicle have selectable drive (4x2 / 4x4) options ?  How is it 
activated?   Can a high/ low gear ratio be provided in the 4x4 option ?  
Elaborate.   

 

(d) Can the 4x4 wheel drive and differential lock be engaged from within the 
driver’s compartment?  

 

(e) Can an Automatic Transmission System be provided? If yes, kindly 
specify type of automatic transmission ie DCT( Wet/ Dry)/CVT. 

 

14. Suspension.  

(a) The vehicle would have to operate cross country and on poorly 
developed roads and tracks.  Keeping the road conditions in mind, what is the 
type of suspension system provided on both axles? 

 

(b) Does it comply with any CMVR norms?  Please elaborate.  

15. Brakes.   

(a) What is the type of front and rear brake system provided?  

(b) Is Anti-Lock Brake System (ABS) with EBD available?  

(c) What is the braking efficiency and braking distance with full payload at 
cruising speed? 

 

(d) Specify the type of Emergency and Parking brake system provided.  

(e) At what gradient will the parking brake be able to hold the vehicle with 
full payload? 

 

(f) Can a ‘Hill Assist Feature’ be provided to prevent vehicle roll back on 
steep gradient ? 

 

16. Steering System.   

(a) What is the type of steering system provided ?  

(b) Can an adjustable (Tilt/Telescopic) steering be provided ?  

17. Tyres.  

(a) Can all terrain type tyres be provided?  

(b) What is the size of tyres recommended for the vehicle ?  

(c) Can Tubeless tyres with Alloy Rims be provided ?  

(d) Can a Tyre Pressure Monitoring System be provided?  

(e) Non-Skid Chain.      

(i) Can Non-Skid Chains be fitted on the tyres to facilitate plying 
 of the vehicle in snow bound conditions? 

 

(ii) Will you be able to provide the non-skid chains as applicable?  

18. Electrical System. What is the Battery type & voltage? Can a maintenance 
free battery be provided? 

 

19. Lighting & Fitments.  

(a) Head Light. What is the type of Head Lamps provided in the vehicle ?  
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S/No Specification/Parameter Reply 
 

Can Projector Head Lamps with LED lights be provided ? 

(b) Fog Lamp. Can Fog Lamps be provided ?  

(c) Tail Lamp Assembly. What is the type of Tail Light Assembly provided 
? 

 

(d) Indicators.  Can indicators for traffic  indication on front and rear be 
provided ? Placement be specified.   

 

(e) Blackout Light System.  

(i) Can a Blackout head, tail & stop lamp with change over from 
normal to blackout driving be provided? 

 

(ii) Can the normal lighting system be made in-operative when the 
blackout lights are put on ? 

 

(f) Wiper.  

 (i) What is the type of wiper motor.  Can a variable speed wiper 
 motor be provided ? 

 

 (ii) Is there a provision of wind screen washing?  

(g) Demister.     Is a demister provided for the front wind screen? Will it be 
effective in sub-zero temperature ? 

 

(h) Wipers, sprinklers and defoggers for front and rear windscreen.    

(j) Horn.  What type of Horn be provided (Electric/Pressure)?  

(k) Additional Lighting Arrangements.  Can the under mentioned lights / 
sockets be provided ? Amplify against each :- 

 

(i) Light for Engine Compartment.  

(ii) Map reading light on the dash board.  

(iii) Cabin Light.  

(iv) A charging socket each on the dash board.  

20. Weather Proofing.  Will all sub-assemblies of the vehicle be capable of 
withstanding extreme weather conditions in the temperature range of                 
-150C to 450C. What measures will be provided to withstand high humidity and 
dust ? 

 

21. Instrument Panel (Instruments and Controls)  

(a) What is the type of instrument panel provided ?  Can a Trip Meter be 
provided ? 

 

(b) Specify the gauges / meters that will be provided in the instrument panel 
? 

 

(c) List out the audio / visual alarms that will be provided in the instrument 
panel ? 

 

(d) Specify the controls that will be mounted on the steering wheel.  

22. Audio System. Can a Audio System with remote be provided in the vehicle?  
Specify the under mentioned features: - 

 

(a) FM/AM Radio.  

(b) USB and Auxiliary input.  

(c) Blue Tooth connectivity.  

(d) Number of speakers.  

(e) Integrated Display Screen (compatible with Rear Camera).    

(f) Steering Mounted Controls.  
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S/No Specification/Parameter Reply 
 

23. Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) System.  
 
(a) Is the vehicle fitted with Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) 
system for the Hard Top cabin ?  Please provide details of the system and give 
heating/ cooling capability with respect to the ambient temperature.  Can the 
HVAC system carry out windscreen demisting?    

 

(b) Will there be ventilation in rear/ middle seats?  

24. Air Bags. Can air bags be provided for the driver, co-driver and second row 
seating? Please specify. 

 

25. Fire Extinguisher.  Can a multipurpose dry powder fire extinguisher with min 2 
Kgs capacity of hand held type suitably mounted. 

 

26. Reverse Camera.  Can reverse camera with integrated display panel in the 
driver’s compartment be provided ?  Can an audio alarm with sensors be 
incorporated with the Camera ? 

 

27. Stowage Facilities. Can the following Stowage facilities be provided : -  

(a) Glove Box.  

(b) One 20 litres Jerrican (for spare fuel).  

(c) Bag/Wallet for carriage of vehicle tools and accessories.  

(d) Explain provision od spare wheel, mounting details and location?  

28. Tools and Accessories.     List out the tools and accessories provided with the 
vehicle.  

 

29. Operation, Maintenance and Repair.  

(a) Method of Operation/Temperate Ranges  

(b) Will you be providing spares, Special Maintenance tool and special test 
equipment for carrying out comprehensive repair? 

 

(b) Will you be providing AMC for repair and calibration cover for special 
maintenance tools and special test equipment?  

 

(c) Will you be providing Interactive Electronic Training Manuals (IETMs) as 
part of technical literature? If yes which class? 

 

(d) The Engineering Support Package (ESP) will be provided exclusively by 
you or you are sourcing them through sub vendors? 

 

 (e) What is the maximum No of pers required to repair any assembly of the 
vehicle? 

 

 (f) Is there any difficulty in accessibility of any component/ assembly of the 
vehicle for fitment and removal? 

 

 (g) Any virtual training module for the equipment are available and will be 
provided? 

 

30. Safety Arrangements.  

(a)  What are the safety arrangements on the vehicle?  

(b) What are the warning arrangements incorporated to ensure safe 
operation? 

 

  (c) Does it have protection from rain and snow conditions?  

31. Navigation System.   Can a IRNSS (Indian Regional Navigation Satellite 
System) based Navigation System be provided in the vehicle?  Please provide 
all relevant details of the system.   

 

32. Can a Driver Information Display System be provided ?  What all features will it 
have?   

 

33. Will the vehicle have CBRN protection of any kind/type/level ?  How will it be 
ensured? 

 

34. Diagnostic Equipment.   
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S/No Specification/Parameter Reply 
 

(a) Is there any automatic diagnostic equipment available to check the 
health of engine, FIP and sensors ?   

 

(b) Can the diagnostic equipment be utilized to analyse vehicle/  driver 
performance parameters? 

 

€ Explain the methodology of transferring data from vehicle to backup 
storage system? 

 

35. Maintenance Philosophy.   

(a) What would be the Maintenance philosophy for repair and maintenance 
of the vehicle ?  Can it be aligned with the system of unit and Field level repairs 
prevalent in the Defence Services? 

 

(b) Would the vehicle have interoperability with the present fleet of    in-
service recovery vehicles in terms of towing arrangements? Please elaborate.   

 

(c) What would be the infrastructure & skill sets needed for maintenance.  

(d) What would be the training requirement for maintenance of the vehicle at 
unit and field level ? 

 

(e) Upgradation Philosophy.     

(i) What would be the upgradation philosophy with respect to the 
vehicle? 

 

(ii) Elaborate upon the frequency and nature of upgrades 
recommended by you. 

 

(iii) Will software upgrades/patches be provided whenever required?  

36. Training.      

(a) Can training be provided for the drivers / personnel carrying out repair 
and maintenance of the vehicle ? 

 

(b) Can sectionised cut models of major assemblies, CBT packages, 
Training Charts and other Training related reference material be    provided ?  
Please specify.   

 

(c) What are the facilities available at OEM/Vendor premises to conduct 
training? 

 

(d) How will you assist in carrying out training for user, maintenance 
personnel and QA personnel? 

 

(e) What is the recommended training period of maintenance and QA 
personnel and user/crew? 

 

(f) Whether simulator for the eqpt are available and will be provided?  

(g) Will you provide soft copies of the ‘User Handbook’ and other manuals 
including technical manuals alongwith the CBT for trg? 

 

37. Simulator.  

(a) Can a Driving Simulator for the proposed vehicle be provided by the 
manufacturers ?  What technology and features would the Simulator have to 
simulate different terrain, weather and traffic conditions ? 

 

(b) What would be the indicative cost of the Simulator ?  

38 Is the equipment available in Indian market ?  What is the level of 
indigenization, maintenance support and life time support ? 

 

39 Indigenous Content/ Production.    

(a) Can the equipment /platform be produced indigenously by the Indian 
Industry? If yes, what will be the Indigenous Content provided & verification 
process? Is the eqpt indigenously designed and developed (IDDM)?   

 

(b) What are the critical technologies which the industry has taken from their 
global partners or Joint Venture, if any?  Or what are the essential critical 
technologies which are required to be obtained ? 
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(c) How much time will the startup / Joint Venture take to start production ?  

(d) Does the Indian Industry have the capability to design, develop, 
manufacture, test and integrate the system including the critical technology? 

 

(e) What are the enhanced parameters/specifications that can be provided?  

(f) Do you have Industrial Licences for the production of the vehicle?  If not, 
have you applied for the same and when (date) and by which it is likely to be 
granted ? 

 

 (g) Details of indigenous Military materials already being manufactured in 
the country.  

 

40. Please furnish details of IPR documentation / patents / design resignation / 
copyright etc registered with the 7uthorized agency in respect of the vehicle. 
 

 

41. Is the complete set of design and production drawing and source code for all 
software applications/ programmes available with your company.  Can they be 
produced for verification ? 
 

 

42. Trials/ Prototypes.    

(a) Is the prototype readily available or has to be designed / manufactured ?   

(b) What will be the time penalty and fall out if additional features/higher 
technology is asked in the prototype? OR If the equipment is to be fielded in 4 
months/6months, what level of technology (or type of prototype) would be made 
available?  

 

(c) Is the OEM/Vendor willing to participate in trials as per DAP-2020 in 
India on ‘No Cost No Commitment (NCNC)’ basis? 

 

(d) What maximum equipment quantity can be made available in India for 
trials on ‘NCNC basis’? Does OEM agree to submit type approval certificate 
with NABL Accredited/ Govt Approved Lab Certificate for Performance related 
parameters, Main Assy and its aggregates as per IS/JSG/national Std Mounted 
on vehicle before NCNC Trial? 

 

(e) What is the suitability of eqpt for deploy in various types of terrain in 
India? Specify separately for deserts, plains, mountainous, High Altitude Area. 

 

(f) What is the likely time and clearances required for import of equipment 
for trials in India? 

 

(g) When will the vendor be able to deposit the equipment for trials on 
intimation by the user post successful clearance of TEC?  

 

 (h) Whether vendor certification can be given for major parameter e.g. 
operating temperature and weather condition etc? 

 

 (j) Whether crew required for operating the equipment for user trials shall 
be provided by the vendor? 

 

 (k) EMI/EMC & Other Standards. Which accredited laboratory (Indian/ 
International) has certified your equipment?  

 

43 
. 

Commercial Terms & Cost.  

(a) All the elements which need to be structured in the costing of the 
weapons/equipment system (including comprehensive maintenance/ product 
support package) 

 

(b) What will be the estimated price of the complete vehicle?  

(c) What will be the estimated cost of the ‘Equipment Support Package’ 
(ESP) recommended by the OEM/vendor? 

 

(d) What INCOTERMS 2020 are suitable/ preferred by your company and  
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for what reasons?  (Global & Indian vendors)? 

44. Product Support.  

(a) What kind of ‘Product Support’ will you ensure? What will be the ‘Time 
Period’? 

 

(b) Have you supplied the equipment to any other country? If yes, furnish 
details of quantity supplied to the country and year of supply? 

 

(c) Does the company have major repair and overhaul facility for major 
assemblies and component level repair? 

 

(d) What is the likely ‘Shelf Life’ of the equipment produced by your 
company? 

 

(e) What kind of ‘Engineering Support Package’ will you be offering?  

(f) What type of AMC will be provided? Likely Cost?  

(g) What life time support can be provided by the vendor?  

(h) Are you willing to provide upgrades for the software (as applicable)?  

(j) Does the equipment have capability of backing up data? What all 
redundancies are provided for the same? 

 

45. Production Capacity.     

(a) What is your annual production capacity? Can it be scaled up to meet 
increased requirement? 

 

(b) How much time is required by you to deliver the equipment after 
conclusion of contract ? 

 

Time Schedule.  

46. (a) Would your company be able to adhere to the laid down time lines for 
FoPM  &Trials? 

 

(b) Would your company be able to deliver ordered quantities in the time 
frame decided by GoI? 

 

47. Budgetary Estimate.  

(a) Approximate basic cost of the vehicle ?  

(i) In case of Manual Transmission.   

 (ii) In case of Automatic Transmission (Mention Type ie 
 MT/IMT/AT/DCT/CVT) 

 

(b) Estimated Cost per vehicle including cost of product support package 
and training cost? 

 

(c) Are you willing to accept the Option Clause? Give the duration for which 
the clause would be valid? 

 

Vendor Selection Criteria/ Pre- qualification  

48. Is the Applicant Entity an Indian Company as defined under Companies Act 
2013? 

 

49. Has the Applicant Entity of any of its allied entitles ever been banned or 
suspended by MoD/ SHQ of any Government  Department of Organisation? 
Details of vigilance action viz ongoing investigations by any Department/ 
agency of Central Government may be provided. 

 

50. Is the Applicant Entity a Manufacturing Entity or System Integrates or Trading 
Company? 

 

51. Does your Company have any previous experience/ expertise in this field? 
Specify the field of expertise/ experience of your company and duration of 
experience in years. 

 

52. Specify the turnover and net worth of your Company in the last three (03) years.  
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53. Is your Company under insolvency resolution as per Indian Bankruptcy Code?  

54. What is the Credit Rating of your Company equivalent to CRISIL rating?  

55. Does your Company quality under Start Up or MSME Category?  

Misc  

56. Is the equipment in use in the Defence/Para Military Forces in the country and 
since when? 

 

57. Any other relevant inputs.  

58. Is the vendor capable of delivery at Buyer premises?  

59. How long (in days/months) will the vendor take to deposit the equipment for 
trials on intimation by the buyer post successful/ clearance of TEC? 
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 Appendix ‘B’  
 

VENDOR INFORMATION PROFORMA 
 
 
 
1. Name of the Vendor/Company/Firm  
 (Company profile including Share Holding pattern, in brief, to be attached)  
 ___________________________________________________________ 
 ___________________________________________________________ 
 
2.  Type (Tick the relevant category).  
 

(a) Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) : Yes/No 
 
(b) Authorised Vendor of foreign Firm  : Yes/No (attach details, if yes) 
 
(c) Others (give specific details) 

 
3.  Contact Details.  
 
 Postal Address :  _________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 
  

City  :________________ State  :____________________  
 
Pin Code  :________________ Tele  :_____________________  
 
Fax  :________________ URL/Website:____________________ 

 
4.  Local Branch/Liaison Office/Agent (if any).  
 
 Name & Address:  
 PIN Code:  
 Tel:      Fax:  
 Email:  
 
5. Financial Details.   
  
 Category of Industry (Large/Medium/Small Scale):_____________ 
 
6. Certification by Quality Assurance Organisation. 
 

Name of 
Agency 

Certificate Applicable from 
(Date and Year) 

Valid Till 
(Date & Year) 
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7. Details of Registration. 
 

Agency Registration No Validity (Date) Equipment 

GeM    

DGQA/DGAQA/DGNAI    

OFB    

DRDO    

Any other Government 
Agency 

   

 
8. Membership of FICCI/ASSOCHAM/CII or other Industrial Associations. 
 
 (a) Name of Organisation    
 

(b) Membership Number 
 
9. Equipment/Product Profile (to be submitted for each product separately) 
 

(a) Name of Product : ________________________________________ 
 
 (IDDM Capability be indicated against the product) 

(Should be given category wise for e.g. all products under night vision devices to be 
mentioned together) 

 
 (b) Description (attach technical literature) :_______________________ 
 
 (c) Whether OEM or Integrator : ________________________________ 
 
 (d) Name and address of Foreign collaborator (if any): ______________ 
 
 (e) Industrial License Number : ________________________________ 
 
 (f) Indigenous component of the product (in percentage): ___________ 
 
 (g) Status (in service/ design and development stage)_______________ 
 
 (h) Production capacity per annum:______________________________ 

 
(j) Countries/agencies where equipment supplied earlier (give details of quantity 
supplied): 
 
 _______________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________ 
 
(k) Estimated price of the equipment ____________________________ 

 
10. Alternatives for meeting the objectives of the equipment set forth in the RFI. 
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11. Any other relevant information : _________________________________ 
 
12. Declaration.    It is certified that the above information is true and any changes will 
be intimated at the earliest. 
 
(Note: Paragraph 44 and Appendix F to Chapter II of DAP may be referred) 
 
 
 
 
 
        (Authorised Signatory) 
        Name : 

Appointment : 
Tele No : 
Mob No : 
eMail : 

 


